January 31, 1972

BY-LAWS

ARTICLE 1

The name of this organization shall be: Junction City Sundowner Snowmobile Club Its Principal office shall be in Junction City, WI

ARTICLE 2

MISSION STATEMENT:

SECTION 1. To serve as a medium of exchange of ideas, information and parts for admirers of snowmobiles, and to aid them in their efforts to enjoy and participate in this activity. This club will exercise general supervision, direction, control, and assistance to its members.

SECTION 2. To unite in a central organization all owners of snowmobiles and to attract prestige and respect within the community. It shall further be the purpose of this club to help these owners become better acquainted, encourage and maintain among its members, and the public, the spirit of good fellowship, sociality, and fairplay. Through sponsored activities including the use of the snowmobile and family participation.

SECTION 3. The club shall be non-commercial, non-sectarian, and non-partisan.

ARTICLE 3

MEMBERS:

SECTION 1. REQUIREMENTS: Requirements for membership shall not insist upon the actual possession of a snowmobile. Merely an interest in the club and a desire to take an active part in club activities shall be the primary requirement for membership. An applicant for membership must be of good character as to be of benefit to the club and its functions, and must display sincerity of purpose.

SECTION 2. DUES: The dues set annually are payable by the members in advance of the first day of October each year.

SECTION 3. ASSET DISTRIBUTION PLAN: In the event of dissolution of the club, all assets present in the treasury at the time of dissolution will be donated to another tax-exempt snowmobile club in the area.

SECTION 4. Minimum age of voting members shall be 18 years.

SECTION 5. Family membership shall include spouse and children under age 19.

SECTION 6. Membership under age 18 will be acceptable with parent written approval at same dues and rights of regular membership.

ARTICLE 4

SECTION 1. ANNUAL MEETING: The annual meeting of the members shall be held during September in each year. The purpose of said meeting shall be the election of officers and directors and the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting.

SECTION 2. REGULAR MEETING: Regular meetings of the members shall be held on the third Monday of each month from September thru May for the purpose of transacting business.

SECTION 3. SPECIAL MEETING: Special meetings of the members may be called either by the President, another officer, another director, or not less than one-tenth of the members.

SECTION 4. NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING: A written or printed notice stating the place, day and hour of any special meeting shall be delivered to each member not less than five, nor more than forty days before the date of such meeting, and the purpose of which the special meeting is called shall be stated in the notice.

SECTION 5. QUORUM: The members holding one-tenth of the votes which may be cast at the meeting shall constitute a quorum at such meetings. If a quorum is not present at any meeting of the member, a majority of members present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

ARTICLE 5

OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS.

SECTION 1. OFFICERS: The officers of the club shall be a President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer & Maintenance Manager. Officers of the club shall also be directors and be elected at the annual meeting and shall serve for the period of the following year.

SECTION 2. DIRECTORS: The members shall elect from their number no less than three directors, who, at the commencement of the club, shall be elected to serve as one member for one year, one member for two years, and one member for three years. At each annual meeting thereafter as their terms expire, they shall be elected to serve for terms of three years.

SECTION 3. PRESIDENT: The president shall be the principal executive officer of the club and shall in general supervise and control all the business and affairs of the club. He/She shall preside at all meetings of the members and shall perform all duties incident to the office of President.

SECTION 4. VICE PRESIDENT: In absence of the President, the Vice-President shall perform the duties of the President.

SECTION 5. SECRETARY: The Secretary shall keep minutes of the meetings of the members, see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provision of these by-laws, keep a register of the post office address of each member, and in general perform all duties incident of the office of Secretary.

SECTION 6. TREASURER: The Treasurer shall have charge and custody and be responsible for all funds of the club, and subject to audits as directed. May be subject to background check.

SECTION 7. MAINTENANCE MANAGER: The Maintenance Manager shall be responsible for all routine maintenance of club grooming and trail maintenance equipment with authority to order all parts and labor required to keep equipment in good working condition.

ARTICLE 6

FISCAL YEAR: The fiscal year of the club will begin on the first day of Sept. and end on the last day of Aug.

ARTICLE 7

AMENDMENTS TO BY-LAWS: These by-laws may be altered, amended or repealed and new by-laws may be adopted by a two-thirds majority of the members present at any meeting of the members, provided at least five days written notice is given of intention to alter, amend or repeal or to adopt new by-laws at such meeting.

ARTICLE 8

TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP: The officers and Directors, by affirmative vote of two-thirds of all the member of the Board, may suspend or expel a member for cause after an appropriate hearing, and may by a majority vote of those present at any regularly constituted meeting, terminate the membership of any member who becomes ineligible for membership. Or suspend or expel any member who becomes ineligible for membership. Or suspend or expel any member who shall be in default in the payment of dues for the fixed period in Section 2 or Article 3 of these by-laws.

ARTICLE 9

RESIGNATION: Any member may resign by filing a written resignation with the Secretary, but such resignation shall not relieve the member resigning of the obligation to pay any dues, assessments or other charges therefore accrued and unpaid.

ARTICLE 10

REINSTATEMENT: Upon written request signed by a former member and filed with the Secretary, the officers and directors may, by affirmation vote of two-thirds, reinstate such former member to membership upon such terms as the officers and directors may seem appropriate.

ARTICLE 11

TRANSFER OF MEMBERSHIP: Membership in this corporation is not transferable or assignable.

ARTICLE 12

LEAVE OF ABSENCE: By written request a leave of absence can be arranged and voted on by secret ballot by affirmation vote of two-thirds of the officers and directors.

ARTICLE 13

LIABILITIES: The club shall not be responsible for liability at any sponsored events. The club shall not be responsible for the actions of its members.

AMENDMENTS TO THE BY-LAWS AMENDMENT 1 Sept. 11, 1972

The regular meetings will be held on the second Monday of each month and the forth Wednesday from November to March.

AMENDMENT 2

Nov. 29, 1972

To amend Article 3 – Section 4 – 18 years. Section 5 – to 19. Section 6 - to 18.

AMENDMENT 3

Nov. 17, 2014

Article 2 - Revised to be Mission Statement

Article 3, Section 1 - Removed the following words: "objects of the", "shall and", "and objects"

Article 3, Section 2 - October was September

Article 3, Section 3 - Removed "New members shall be sponsored by a member". Added "Asset Distribution Plan"

Article 3, Section 5 - Added "Family"

Article 3, Section 6 - Removed "Auxiliary"

Article 4, Section 2 - "on the third Monday of each month from September thru May" was " at least monthly"

Article 5, Section 3 - Revised "He/She" was "He"

Article 5, Section 6 – Added "May be subject to background check."

AMENDMENT 4

April. 15, 2018

Article 5, Section 1 - Added Maintenance Manager

Article 5, Section 7 - Added Maintenance Manager Officer Position & Responsibilities